

PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 9 MAY 2016

PRESENT: COUNCILLOR I G FLEETWOOD (CHAIRMAN)

Councillors D McNally (Vice-Chairman), J W Beaver, D Brailsford, G J Ellis, D C Hoyes MBE, D M Hunter-Clarke, M S Jones, N H Pepper, Mrs H N J Powell, Mrs J M Renshaw, C L Strange, T M Trollope-Bellew, W S Webb and A M Austin

Councillor C J Davie attended the meeting as an observer

Officers in attendance:-

Steve Blagg (Democratic Services Officer), Jeanne Gibson (Area Highways Manager (City of Lincoln)), Neil McBride (Planning Manager), Mandy Wood (Solicitor) and David Kerfoot (Solicitor)

96 <u>APOLOGIES/REPLACEMENT MEMBERS</u>

The Chief Executive reported that under the Local Government (Committee and Political Groups) Regulations 1990, he had appointed Councillor A M Austin to the Committee, in place of Councillor Ms T Keywood-Wainwright, for this meeting only.

97 DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS

Councillor T M Trollope-Bellew requested that a note should be made in the minutes that he had attended meetings of Baston Parish Council when the planning application had been discussed but had not made any comment during the discussions (minute 102).

98 <u>MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND</u> <u>REGULATION COMMITTEE HELD ON 11 APRIL 2016</u>

RESOLVED

That the minutes of the previous meeting of the Planning and Regulation Committee held on 11 April 2016, be agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

2 PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 9 MAY 2016

99 TRAFFIC ITEM

100 <u>LINCOLN - MINT LANE, CORPORATION STREET AND CLASKETGATE.</u> <u>PROPOSED EVENING TAXI RANKS TO BE INTRODUCED ON EXISTING</u> <u>DISABLED PARKING BAY, GOODS VEHICLE LOADING ONLY BAY AND</u> <u>LIMITED WAITING BAY</u>

The Committee received a report in connection with an objection received to a proposal to convert a disabled parking bay, goods vehicle loading only bay and limited waiting bay to dual use as evening taxi ranks, on Mint Lane, Corporation Street and Clasketgate, Lincoln.

The report gave details of the proposal, consultations, objection received and the comments of officers on the objection received.

Discussion between the Committee and officers included the following:-

1. The loss of free parking for visitors and the effect on the local economy.

2. Parking for visitors to Lincoln was expensive.

3. It was noted that all Hackney Carriage Taxis currently parked at the Railway Station. Officers stated that the licensing of Hackney Carriage Taxis was a City of Lincoln responsibility and they supported the provision of additional parking for Hackney Carriage Taxis in the areas proposed in the report.

4. Was it possible to provide a special coach to take people away from this area of Lincoln? Officers stated that this option had been suggested already but was found to be unpractical because people left the City at various times. Also, it was only possible to consider the option detailed in the report as it would be necessary to re-consult if other options were considered.

5. There was already adequate private parking provision in Lincoln and the proposals in the report only involved only a small reduction of private parking.

6. Lincoln's night life was very busy and there was a need to remove people as quickly as possible.

On a motion by Councillor M S Jones, seconded by Councillor I G Fleetwood, it was –

RESOLVED (13 votes for, 0 votes against and 1 abstention)

That the objection be overruled and that the order be confirmed as proposed at consultation.

101 COUNTY COUNCIL APPLICATIONS

102 <u>TO REMOVE CONDITION 4 OF PLANNING PERMISSION S7/0287/92</u> (VEHICULAR PARKING) AT BASTON CHURCH OF ENGLAND PRIMARY SCHOOL, 103A MAIN STREET, BASTON - S7/0478/16

Since the publication of the report a response to consultation had been received from Baston Church of England Primary School to comments made by Baston Parish Council, sent to Planning Officers on 25 April 2016, as detailed in the update to the Committee.

Councillor T M Trollope-Bellew tabled correspondence to the Committee as follows:-

1. An email from Neil McBride, Development Manager, to Councillor Trollope-Bellew, dated 13 June 2013.

2. A number of exchanged emails between Alan Hutchins and the Clerk of Baston Parish Council.

3. A letter from the Clerk of Baston Parish Council to Mrs Rebecca Mills,

Headteacher, Baston Church of England Primary School, dated 16 September 2014. 4. A letter from Mrs Rebecca Mills, Headteacher, Baston Church of England Primary School, dated 25 September 2014, to the Clerk of Baston Parish Council.

5. A letter from the Clerk of Baston Parish Council to the County Council's Planning Enforcement, dated 19 November 2014.

6. A letter from the County Council's Development Manager to the Clerk of Baston Parish Council, dated 4 December 2014.

Simon Gledhill, representing the applicant, commented as follows:-

1. Young children did not have any concept of road safety.

2. Since 1992, when the original parking at the school had been planned, there had been an increase in the number of children on roll at the school, more housing development and an increase in traffic.

3. The number of children and teachers living further away from the school had increased. In 1992, all of the teaching staff lived in the village and the majority of the children lived in the village.

4. Parents now had freedom of choice to which school they sent their child to whereas in 1992 a child attended the school in their catchment area.

Simon Gledhill responded to questions from the Committee as follows:-

1. He was a former Police Officer and had been trained on safeguarding matters.

2. There were twenty members of staff and to provide additional parking on the school site would mean using part of the playing field to provide parking.

3. What worked well for parking in 1992 was no longer the case due to the increase in size of the school and the fact that there was an increase use of the car to transport children to school.

4. There was no such thing as "drop off/pick up" points.

5. The school had been burnt down by a fire and it was important that emergency vehicles did not have access issues on entering and leaving the school.

4 PLANNING AND REGULATION COMMITTEE 9 MAY 2016

6. Parking for parents on the school site was not banned.

7. Children were encouraged to walk and cycle to school as part of the Travel Plan. Also, the local pub was used by parents to park their cars.

8. The school did not have the capacity to escort children to school.

9. Parents of disabled children were allowed to park at the school.

10. Parking permits existed for the school and these were required to be shown on a vehicle's dashboard.

11. There had been increased development in the vicinity of the school but this seemed to be mainly for elderly people rather than families.

12. There were currently 20 car parking spaces available but many more were competing for space.

Comments by the Committee included:-

1. The dropping off and picking up of children by parents was common at most schools in the county but the problem was particularly worse at these times and in some cases parents waited for a long time.

2. Children had to cross the main road which passed the entrance to the school due to parents parking their cars in nearby roads. There was no pedestrian crossing on the main road which would allow children to cross this road. Therefore, it was safer for children to be dropped off in the school grounds.

3. The school needed to manage the transportation of children within its own boundary.

4. If parking provision for parents changed for example due to a change in the ownership of the local pub where parking provision was currently provided then it would be understandable for the school to seek different parking arrangements.

5. The situation had changed considerably since 1992 with an increased use of the car and more children attending the school.

6. Safety of children was paramount.

7. The school needed to work with the local community and the Parish Council to solve this problem.

8. Parents of young children should be allowed to park at the school and parents of older children could park at the local pub.

9. Was the access road to the school from the main road wide enough to accommodate two vehicles?

Officers stated that the access road to the school from the main road was sufficiently wide enough to accommodate two vehicles and that the Council had sought a compromise solution to the problems of parking at the school and hence the recommendations in the report.

A motion by Councillor C L Strange to support the recommendations of officers in the report was not seconded. Councillor C L Strange following further debate withdrew his motion.

A motion by Councillor M S Jones, seconded by Councillor A M Austin, to remove the current restrictions and to support the proposal of the school to remove condition 4 of planning permission S7/0287/92 at Baston Church of England Primary School, was defeated by 5 votes for and 7 votes against.

On a motion by Councillor N H Pepper, seconded by Councillor C L Strange, it was -

RESOLVED (10 votes for and 0 votes against)

That consideration of the planning application be deferred pending a site visit.

103 OTHER REPORTS

104 <u>PERFORMANCE OF HANDLING PLANNING APPLICATIONS BY THE</u> COUNTY COUNCIL AS PLANNING AUTHORITY FOR 2015/16

The Committee received a report in connection with information on planning application determination performance during the financial year 2015/16.

RESOLVED

That the report be noted and appropriate publicity be given of the Council's performance in determining planning applications during the last financial year.

The meeting closed at 12.00 pm